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2 60 FR 17656 (Apr. 7, 1995). 
3 62 FR 9115 (Feb. 28, 1997). 

4 64 FR 57296 (Oct. 22, 1999). 
5 Id. 
6 The industry term ‘‘business format franchise’’ 

specifically refers to franchises in which 
franchisees operate under a common trademark or 
other commercial symbol and are required to 
adhere to the specific business format or method of 
doing business prescribed by the franchisor. 
Business format franchises are commonly called 
‘‘franchises’’ by the general public, and the two 
terms are used interchangeably here. 

the offer; statistical analyses of existing 
franchised and company-owned outlets; 
information about prior purchasers, 
including the names and addresses of at 
least 10 purchasers nearest the 
prospective buyer; and audited financial 
statements. 

The Commission recognized that 
requiring these extensive disclosures 
would likely impose significant 
compliance costs on businesses covered 
by the Original Franchise Rule. It 
therefore sought to strike the proper 
balance between prospective 
purchasers’ need for pre-sale disclosure 
and the burden imposed on those 
selling business ventures covered by the e 
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CV–0396–EA (X) (N.D. Okla. 2001) ($125 fee); FTC 
v. Para-Link Int’l, No. 8:00–CV–2114–T–27E (M.D. 
Fla. 2000) ($395 to $495 fee); see also Consumer 
Fraud in the United States: The Second FTC Survey 
(October 2007) at 48, available at http:// 
www.ftc.gov/opa/2007/10/fraud.pdf (indicating a 
median payment for work-at-home schemes of 
$200). 

52 See 71 FR at 19079 (citing comments submitted 
in earlier proceedings by NCL, SBA Advocacy, 
Finnigan, and Purvin). 

53 E.g., FTC v. Darling Angel Pin Creations, Inc., 
No. 8:10–cv–00335–JSM–TGW (M.D. Fla. Feb. 
2010); FTC v. Indep. Mktg. Exch. Inc., No. 1:10–cv– 
00568–NLH–KMW (D.N.J. Feb. 2010); FTC v. 
Preferred Platinum Svcs. Network LLC, No. 3:10– 
cv–00538–MLC–LHG (D.N.J. Feb. 2010). 

54 In bringing these FTC law enforcement actions, 
the FTC partnered with sister federal agencies— 
such as the DOJ and the United States Postal 
Inspection Service—and with the various state 
attorneys general, including the District of 
Columbia. Thus, these ‘‘sweeps’’ entailed many 
more actions besides those brought by the FTC. 

55 E.g., Project Fal$e Hope$, see FTC News 
Release: Federal, State Law Enforcers Complete 
Bogus Business Opportunity Sweep (Dec. 12, 2006), 
available at http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/ 
projectfalsehopes.shtm; Project Biz Opp Flop, see 
FTC News Release: Criminal and Civil Enforcement 
Agencies Launch Major Assault Against Promoters 
of Business Opportunity and Work-at-Home 
Schemes (Feb. 22, 2005), available at http:// 
www.ftc.gov/opa/2005/02/bizoppflop.htm; Project 
Busted Opportunity, see FTC News Release: State, 
Federal Law Enforcers Launch Sting on Business 
Opportunity, Work-at-Home Scams (June 20, 2002), 
available at http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2002/06/ 
bizopswe.shtm; Project Biz-illion$, see FTC News 
Release: State-Federal Crackdown on Phony 
Business Opportunities Intensifies (March 6, 2000), 
available at http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2000/03/ 
biz.shtm; Operam
(55w_1 1 3. 2000)/udk56 1 Tf
-0.0029 Tw 10.603 0 Td
(FT-siness Opportunitiesarb7T(Pr5d
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http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/projectfalsehopes.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2010/02/bottomdollar.shtm
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http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/07/shortchange.shtm
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http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1998/02/moneypit.shtm
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http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1997/08/tradenam.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1997/08/tradenam.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1996/11/misdfort.shtm
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http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1995/07/scam.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1995/07/scam.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2000/03/biz.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2000/03/biz.shtm
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79 See, e.g., CAI-Staff Report at 1, 10–41; PSA– 
Staff Report. 

80 CAI-Staff Report at 10–41; PSA-Staff Report 
(‘‘The basis of the exclusion appears to be the 
extraordinary claim that there is insufficient 
evidence of widespread fraud in the multi-level 
marketing field.’’). 

81 Indeed, the language quoted by CAI and PSA 
contains a footnote referencing the section of the 
RNPR that discussed traditional product 
distribution arrangements. See Staff Report at 30 
(citing 73 FR at 16113). 

82 See 73 FR at 16119; see also Staff Report at 20. 
83 Indeed, one commenter recommended a 

completely separate set of disclosures for MLM 
opportunities, further suggesting that the Business 
Opportunity Rule is a poor fit for the MLM 
industry. See Johnson-Staff Report (recommending 
that the FTC convert its consumer education on 
investing with an MLM into a series of disclosures 
that would be MLM-specific). 

84 See 73 FR at 16120. 

85 While CAI presented its proposal for an 
earnings disclosure, it is clear that the disclosure 
would be specific to MLMs and would have no 
application to the other types of business 
opportunities addressed by the Rule. See CAI–Staff 
Report at 7–33. 

86 See 73 FR at 16121. 
87 Brooks-Staff Report at 8. 

88 Id. 
89 Multi-level marketing is a business model in 

which a company distributes products through a 
network of distributors who earn income from their 
own retail sales of the product and from retail sales 
made by the distributors’ direct and indirect 
recruits. Because they earn a commission from the 
sales their recruits make, each member in the MLM 
network has an incentive to continue recruiting 
additional sales representatives into their ‘‘down 
lines.’’ See Vander Nat & Keep, supra note 13. 

90 Comments submitted in response to the Staff 
Report did not refute these arguments, but actually 
bolstered them. For instance, one commenter noted 
that MLM recruiters will often pretend they are 
wealthy when they are not, simply to entice others 
to join the MLM. See O’Handley-Staff Report at 2; 
see also CAI–Staff Report at 5 (noting that in MLMs, 
‘‘every major victim is of necessity a perpetrator 
(recruiter) because to have any hope of recouping 
their ongoing investments * * * they must recruit 
others to do what they have done’’). 

following language contained in the 
Staff Report: ‘‘Two key problems 
emerged with the IPBOR’s breadth of 
coverage. First, the IPBOR would have 
unintentionally swept in numerous 
commercial arrangements where there is 
little or no evidence that fraud is 
occurring.’’ 79 The commenters suggest, 
incorrectly, that the quoted language 
reveals a finding by the Commission 
that there is little or no evidence of 
fraud occurring within the MLM 
industry.80 This language, however, 
referred to a passage from the RNPR that 
addressed traditional product 
distribution arrangements, not MLMs.81 
The Commission has not made a finding 
that there is little or no evidence of 
fraud within the MLM industry; to the 
contrary, it has specifically recognized, 
through its own law enforcement 
experience, that some MLMs may be 
pyramid schemes in masquerade and 
may make false and unsubstantiated 
earnings claims.82 

In any event, the comments submitted 
in response to the Staff Report do not 
persuade the Commission that the 
Business Opportunity Rule is the proper 
tool to address these problems.83 Two of 
the affirmative disclosure requirements 
illustrate the difficulty in applying the 
Rule to MLMs: (1) The disclosure of 
substantiation for earnings claims; and 
(2) the disclosure of references. 

First, as the Commission has 
acknowledged, the varied and complex 
structure of MLMs makes it exceedingly 
difficult to make an accurate earnings 
disclosure and likely would require 
different disclosures for different levels 
of participation in the company. For 
instance, it would be difficult to craft an 
accurate earnings disclosure that would 
account for ‘‘inactive’’ participants that 
use their distributorship as a ‘‘buyers 
club’’ and are interested only in 
purchasing goods at a wholesale price 
for their own use.84 This problem 
appears to be unique to MLMs and, so 

far as the Commission is aware, does not 
arise in other forms of business 
opportunities. 

Furthermore, it may be difficult to 
determine retail income if the MLM is 
not in a position to verify the extent to 
which a distributor has resold the 
product at retail, is warehousing the 
product, or bought the product for his 
or her own personal consumption. Even 
where the MLM has policies in place 
purportedly to ensure that a portion of 
its distributors’ income is derived from 
retail sales, these policies could go 
unenforced, or even where ostensibly 
enforced, could be circumvented by 
distributors who may have an incentive 
to ‘‘inflate’’ their retail sales by 
‘‘ca2FTj
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(wtail sraud ontaine his )Tj
Te itedlqualo veduct fg
(orrent leadth of )Tj
The Comminit Tdlir boofales, tngly 
diffil sa’beca
T*
(us, the comme of )Tj
T*s submi Td
(in response to the S the )Tj
aff Reppyr
T*
e ouustratespde a fi salesS the 
idas purate earnings disclosure Even 
opportunth of 
reqa
T* e*
(ncen use.)Tj
0 Tw 7.002 0 0 373.8032.8328 453.528 5m
(82)Tj
9 0381.583.079 576.5001 Tm
( )Tj
-0.0045 69 12 Tw 1 -1.022Sllynledged,e of refenings disclot to 

pu21buyers aehouondged,e of refenlT*
e and liEven idpearoulencenmade (iniersEven )Tjbeneforecome iyrced, c
T*ve annma the 
82
enforced,1e
TfenlT*
forecomeRxpernUtail sr  

iness 

reqto verify s 
prnse to the elt to craftt encenT*
 thinesalwayss whnse ta528 Tm
(84)Tj
-0.0045 Tw 9 378, d06 182.8as speuh7
TfenlT*
e1ca2622268 180.5ot 29ntrarsibly 

 a
hathals admineenicedruituondsion is awa66.056so 

to �iyrcedruithona
0 Tws 380.2r retail  b 352 1 53.5s8 Tm
(84)Tj
-0.0045 Tw 9 466.94clo599.32 251.2 9rsibly 

reqtiscsionp TnT*ppoliro the 
to �f in  craftt eneildrail;lreflatetheirahy222 theild the 
nce, i bnnereqtsuade tst, aof ncen usadd 38s002 0 0 37hin th 
hol 



http://ftc.gov/sentinel/reports/sentinel-annual-reports/sentinel-cy2010.pdf
http://ftc.gov/sentinel/reports/sentinel-annual-reports/sentinel-cy2010.pdf


76825 Federal Register / Vol. 76, No. 236 / Thursday, December 8, 2011 / Rules and Regulations 

98 15 U.S.C. 57a(d)(3). 
99 E.g., FTC v. Zoilo Cruz, No. 3:08–cv–01877–JP 

(D. P.R. 2008) (envelope stuffing scheme marketed 
in Spanish-language newspapers and on a Web site 
available in Spanish and English); FTC v. Integrity 
Mktg. Team, Inc., No. 07–cv–61152 (S.D. Fla. 2007) 
(envelope stuffing scheme marketed in Spanish- 
language classified advertisements); FTC v. 
Hispanexo, Inc., No. 1:06–cv–00424–JCC–TRJ (E.D. 
Va. 2006) (assistance in starting a construction, 
gardening, or cleaning business marketed through 
Spanish-language television and radio stations); 
FTC v. Juan Matos, No. 06–61429–CIV–Altonaga 
(S.D. Fla. 2006) (craft assembly business marketed 
through Spanish-language advertisements); FTC v. 
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with other law enforcement partners. E.g., 
Operation Bottom Dollar (2010); Operation Short 
Change (2009); Project Fal$e Hope$ (2006); Project 
Biz Opp Flop (2005); Project Busted Opportunity 
(2002); Project Telesweep (1995); Project Biz-illion$ 
(1999); Operation Money Pit (1998); Project Vend 
Up Broke (1998); Project Trade Name Games (1997); 
and Operation Missed Fortune (1996). In addition 

http://ftc.gov/sentinel/reports/sentinel-annual-reports/sentinel-cy2010.pdf
http://ftc.gov/sentinel/reports/sentinel-annual-reports/sentinel-cy2010.pdf
http://ftc.gov/sentinel/reports/sentinel-annual-reports/sentinel-cy2010.pdf
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2003/12/pushenvelope.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2003/12/pushenvelope.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1998/01/housecal.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1998/01/housecal.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1998/05/showtime.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1998/05/showtime.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1996/11/misdfort.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1996/11/misdfort.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1996/03/buyline.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1996/03/buyline.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2002/04/dialing.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2000/10/topten.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/1997/09/still.shtm
http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2007/10/fraud.pdf
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121 An act or practice is unfair if it ‘‘causes or is 
likely to cause substantial injury to consumers 
which is not reasonably avoidable by consumers 
themselves and not outweighed by countervailing 
benefits to consumers or to competition.’’ 15 U.S.C. 
5(n). 

122 See, e.g., In re Orkin Exterminating Co., 108 
F.T.C. 263 (1986), aff’d, Orkin Exterminating Co. v. 
FTC, 849 F.2d 1354 (11 Cir. 1988). 

123 See FTC Policy Statement on Deception, 
appended to Cliffdale Associates, Inc., 103 F.T.C. 
110, 174 (1984). 

124 73 FR at 16126. The Commission’s decision to 
narrow the Rule so that MLMs would not be 
burdened with unworkable disclosure requirements 
was similarly prompted by concern that any 
potential benefits would be outweighed by 
compliance costs. Id. at 16119–21. 

an illusory refund policy is deceptive 
under Section 5 of the FTC Act. 

Moreover, the failure to honor refund 
promises is an unfair practice in 
violation of Section 5(n) of the FTC 
Act.121 It often results in substantial 
injury to business opportunity 
purchasers that they cannot reasonably 
avoid.122 Moreover, the record is devoid 
of any evidence suggesting that this 
harm is outweighed by any 
countervailing benefits. 

To remedy this practice, under the 
Original Franchise Rule and the interim 
Business Opportunity Rule, it was a 
violation for a seller to fail to refund a 
purchaser’s funds, in certain instances. 
The final Rule continues to address this 
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125 73 FR at 16128. 

126 See 16 CFR 437.1; Final Interpretive Guides 
(‘‘Interpretive Guides’’) accompanying the Original 
Franchise Rule, 44 FR 49966 (Aug. 24, 1978). 

127 At the same time, the final Rule eliminates 
nine of the interim Business Opportunity Rule’s 
terms and their definitions, which are no longer 
necessary: ‘‘prospective business opportunity 
purchaser,’’ ‘‘business day,’’ ‘‘time for making of 
disclosures,’’ ‘‘fractional business opportunity,’’ 
‘‘business opportunity broker,’’ ‘‘sale of a business 
opportunity,’’ ‘‘cooperative association,’’ ‘‘fiscal 
year,’’ and ‘‘personal meeting.’’ 

128 Section 437.3(a)(3) requires disclosure of ‘‘any 
civil or criminal action for misrepresentation, fraud, 
securities law violations, or unfair or deceptive 
practices, including violations of any FTC Rule.’’ 

129 The final Rule covers ‘‘any sales managers, or 
any individual who occupies a position or performs 
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135
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143 See 71 FR at 19087. 
144 Id. 
145 Id. at 19063 & n.106. 
146 Id. at 19087 (IPBOR § 437.1(c)(v)). 
147 See 73 FR at 16113–14. 
148 Timberland-INPR at 2. 
149 Id. 
150 IBA–INPR at 4; see also PMI–INPR at 3. 

151 Venable-INPR at 2–3; NAA–INPR at 1–3. 
152 In addition, the RPBOR clarified that a 

‘‘required payment’’ does not include payments for 
the purchase of reasonable amounts of inventory at 
bona fide prices. The final Rule incorporates this 
clarification. 

153 73 FR at 16124. 
154 Id. 
155 Id. 

156 For example, commenters to the INPR noted 
that the IPBOR would cover ‘‘manufacturers, 
suppliers and other traditional distribution firms 
that have relied on the bona fide wholesale price 
exclusion to avoid coverage’’ under the Rule. 
Sonnenschein-INPR at 1–2. The Cosmetic, Toiletry 
and Fragrance Association posited that the IPBOR 
would cover the relationship between a 
manufacturer and an independent contractor who 
sells the product to beauty supply companies, 
salons, and others. CTFA–INPR; see also LHD&L– 
INPR at 2 (noting that the IPBOR could cover the 
relationship between a manufacturer and a regional 
distributor of products). 

157 73 FR at 16133. 
158 DSA–RNPR. In addition, the Commission 

received more than 40 comments from various 
MLMs that expressed support and concurrence with 
DSA’s comments. See, e.g., Big Ear-RNPR; Jafra 
Cosmetics-RNPR; Lia Sophia-RNPR; Longaberger- 
RNPR; Princess House-RNPR; Shaklee-RNPR. Some 
commenters expressed disappointment that the 
Commission proposed to exclude MLMs from 
coverage by the Rule. See, e.g., CAI–RNPR; Durand- 
RNPR; PSA–RNPR; Aird-RNPR (Rebuttal); 
Parrington-RNPR. As previously noted, the 
Commission decided to narrow the scope of the 
Rule to avoid broadly sweeping in MLMs. 

159 See, e.g., DSA–RNPR; Avon-RNPR; Bates- 
RNPR; IBA–RNPR; MMS–RNPR; Mary Kay-RNPR; 
Melaleuca-RNPR; Primerica-RNPR; Pre-Paid Legal- 
RNPR; IDS–RNPR; Tupperware-RNPR; Venable- 
RNPR. 

160 DSA requires that its members offer to buy 
back, at 90% of the salesperson’s cost, all resalable 
inventory and other sales materials. DSA–INPR at 
35. 

161 DSA–RNPR at 6 n.14 (noting that ‘‘the buy- 
back provision is the cornerstone of the DSA’s self 
regulatory regime and a valuable protection for 
individual direct sellers’’); Mary Kay-RNPR at 6; 
Babener-RNPR; Melaleuca-RNPR. 

elements: (1) A solicitation to enter into 
a new business; (2) payment of 
consideration, directly or indirectly 
through a third party; and (3) the 
making of either an ‘‘earnings claim’’ or 
an offer to provide ‘‘business 
assistance.’’ 143 The IPBOR’s definition 
of ‘‘business assistance’’ included 
assistance in the form of ‘‘tracking or 
paying, or purporting to track or pay, 
commissions or other compensation 
based upon the purchaser’s sale of 
goods or services or recruitment of other 
persons to sell goods or services.’’ 144 
The Commission noted that many 
pyramid schemes offer this type of 
assistance, purporting to compensate 
participants not only for their own 
product sales but also for sales made by 
their participants’ downline recruits.145
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178 This definition is substantially similar to the 
Amended Franchise Rule’s definition of ‘‘financial 
performance representation,’’ which is the 
Amended Franchise Rule’s equivalent of an 
earnings claim. See 16 CFR 436.1(e). 

179 71 FR at 19065. 
180 Id. 
181 44 FR at 49982. 

71 FR at 19065. 
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Turnoff (S.D. Fla. 2000); United States v. Emily 
Water & Beverage Co., Inc., No. 4–00–00131 (W.D. 
Mo. 2000); and United States v. Greeting Card 
Depot, Inc., No. 00–6212–CIV–Gold (S.D. Fla. 2000). 

190 See Interpretive Guides, 44 FR at 49984–85 
(earnings claims made ‘‘for general dissemination’’ 
include ‘‘claims made in advertising (radio, 
television, magazines, newspapers, billboards, etc.) 
as well as those contained in speeches or press 
releases’’). The Commission notes that the 
Interpretive Guides recognize several exemptions to 
the general media claim, such as claims made to the 
press in connection with bona fide news stories, as 
well as claims made directly to lending institutions. 
Id. The Commission has proposed that future 
Compliance Guides to the new Business 
Opportunity Rule retain these standard general 
media claims exemptions. S.D. Flahe .150 Td
(Gr71R at 490)T65

Seeta (Rertunt 499226CI43

See 
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219 E.g., DSA–RNPR at 5 (tools are intended to 
maintain brand uniformity and promote effective 
customer service). 

220 E.g., Primerica-RNPR at 5 (provides advice and 
training about how to identify potential customers 
and how to make effective sales presentations); 
Tupperware-RNPR at 4 (provides training about 
how new representatives can develop own 
customer bases); Venable-RNPR. 

221 DSA–RNPR at 4 (5/27/2008); Primerica-RNPR 
at 6. 

222 E.g., Avon-RNPR at 3 (noting that this practice 
is designed to help potential customers find a sales 
representative, not to help sales representatives find 
potential customers); Mary Kay-RNPR at 7 
(suggesting that merely providing the ability to 
search for a sales associate on the company’s Web 
site should not trigger the ‘‘providing locations’’ 
factor of the ‘‘business opportunity’’ definition); 
DSA–RNPR at 5; Melaleuca-RNPR at 2. 

223 Venable-RNPR at 2. 
224 DSA–RNPR at 5; Venable Rebuttal-RNPR at 3; 

Primerica-RNPR at 5. 
225 Venable-RNPR. 
226 Primerica-RNPR at 8; Tupperware-RNPR at 6; 

Avon-RNPR; Mary Kay-RNPR. 

227 Pre-Paid Legal-RNPR. 
228 Mary Kay-RNPR at 7 (as an alternative Mary 

Kay suggests that in the commentary to the Final 
Rule, the Commission make clear that passing on 
ad hoc referrals of customers who contact the 
company directly would not trigger this provision). 

229 Melaleuca-RNPR. 
230 Staff Advisory Opinion 95–10, Business 

Franchise Guide (CCH) ¶ 6475 (1995). 
231 For example, this new proviso was designed 

to make clear that giving advice about how to 
demonstrate products, complete product order 
forms and how to process returns (Tupperware- 
RNPR); or providing product advertising in the 
general media and training in customer and 
business development (Primerica-RNPR), would not 
be considered as ‘‘providing locations, outlets, 
accounts, and customers.’’ 

232 DOJ-Staff Report at 1–2. 
233 Id. at 2. 
234 Tupperware-Staff Report at 2. 
235 See, e.g., FTC v. Med. Billers Network, Inc., 

No. 05–CV–2014 (S.D.N.Y. 2005); FTC v. Med.- 
Billing.com, Inc., No. 3–02CV0702CP (N.D. Tex. 
2002); FTC v. Electronic Med. Billing, Inc., No. 
SACV02–368 AHS (C.D. Cal. 2002); see also FTC v. 
Star Publ’g Group, Inc., No. 00cv–023D (D. Wyo. 
2000) (offering to everything necessary to earn 
money processing HUD refunds); FTC v. AMP 
Publ’ns, Inc., SACV–00–112–AHS–Anx (C.D. Cal. 
2000) (offering to provide list of companies in need 
of consumer’s home-based computer services). 

236 73 FR at 16123. 
237 Section 437.1(k). 

were concerned that various types of 
optional or no-cost assistance that MLM 
companies frequently offer their sales 
representatives could be considered to 
be ‘‘otherwise assisting.’’ 219 These 
include such things as general advice 
and training about how to succeed in a 
new business venture,220 general 
advertising for the purpose of promoting 
the MLM’s products or services,221 
occasional ad hoc referrals from 
consumers who contact the company 
directly,222 and optional business tools, 
such as web templates and links to 
corporate Web sites that some MLM 
companies offer for sale to its sales 
representatives. Additionally, one 
commenter expressed concern that 
because of this open-ended clause, 
sellers of general training services, such 
as training on how to start a new 
business and advice about how to obtain 
customers, would be covered by the 
Rule.223 

Commenters made a number of 
suggestions to cure what they perceived 
to be the overbreadth of this provision. 
Some commenters suggested omitting 
the word ‘‘customers’’ from the 
‘‘otherwise assisting’’ provision and the 
corresponding provisions of the 
‘‘business opportunity’’ definition.224 
Other commenters recommended that 
the definition distinguish customers 
from ‘‘near customers’’ so as to exclude 
the provision of potential customers or 
businesses that the seller obtains from 
publicly available records.225 Others 
suggested adding a statement that no- 
cost general business advice is not 
‘‘providing customers.’’ 226 Another 
commenter suggested adding a new 
clause to the definition of business 
opportunity that would create an 
exception when the assistance offered 
by the seller is limited to advice or 

training.227 Some commenters suggested 
eliminating the concept of ‘‘potential 
customers’’ from the scope of the 
‘‘otherwise assisting’’ language.228 
Finally, one commenter suggested 
revising the definition of ‘‘business 
opportunity’’ to require that the seller’s 
assistance in providing outlets, accounts 
or customers be a ‘‘material 
inducement’’ to the purchaser.229 

The Staff Report noted a concern with 
narrowing the definition in the ways the 
commenters suggested, because it would 
allow promoters of fraudulent schemes 
to craft their sales pitches carefully to 
evade the Rule. The staff disagreed with 
commenters who recommended 
excising the word ‘‘customers’’ from the 
definition or diluting it in some fashion. 
Instead, the Staff Report recommended 
that the Commission continue its long- 
standing policy of analyzing the 
significance of assistance in the context 
of the of the specific business 
opportunity, focusing on whether the 
seller’s offer is ‘‘reasonably likely to 
have the effect of inducing reliance on 
[the seller] to provide a prepackaged 
business.’’ 230 

While urging that the word 
‘‘customers’’ remain in the definition, 
the Staff Report did recommend new 
qualifying language to address the 
concern that the definition could be 
read more broadly than intended. 
Specifically, the Staff Report 
recommended adding a short proviso to 
the ‘‘otherwise assisting’’ clause as 
follows: ‘‘provided, however, that 
advertising and general advice about 
business development and training shall 
not be considered as ‘providing 
locations, outlets, accounts, or 
customers.’ ’’ 231 

The language recommended in the 
Staff Report received two comments. 
DOJ strongly agreed that ‘‘customers’’ 
should remain in the definition, noting 
that the allure of a business opportunity 
is the purported ready cash flow to the 
purchaser, which can come either from 
locations or customers, depending on 
the nature of the opportunity being 

offered.232 DOJ also agreed with the 
staff’s recommendation to include the 
proviso, but objected to further 
narrowing of coverage, arguing that any 
loophole would be vigorously exploited 
by fraudulent business opportunity 
sellers.233 Tupperware similarly 
encouraged the Commission to adopt 
the proviso as recommended, stating 
that the proviso will allow businesses to 
continue to provide general business 
advice and training without the risk of 
inadvertently falling under the aegis of 
the Rule.234 

The Commission is persuaded by the 
Staff Report’s recommendation not to 
eliminate the word ‘‘customers’’ from 
the ‘‘otherwise assisting’’ clause of the 
definition, and to add qualifying 
language to the definition to tailor 
coverage more appropriately. Providing 
the prospective purchaser with 
assistance in obtaining customers is a 
feature common to many business 
opportunities and should be included in 
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255 Id. 
256 For example, in United States v. Universal 

Adver., Inc., No. 1:06–cv–152–DAK (D. Utah 2006), 
the fraudulent business opportunity seller told 
purchasers they could earn significant money by 
signing up business owners to pay monthly fees to 
display their business cards in rack display ‘‘profit 
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266 71 FR at 19067. 
267 NG Franchise-Staff Report. 
268 See also supra note 261. 
269 Section 437.1(s) allows the disclosure 

document to be provided to purchasers 
electronically, such as by posting in on the Internet, 
sending it via email, etc. Providing the disclosure 
document through one of these alternative methods 
does not, however, relieve the seller of the 
obligation to obtain and maintain copies of signed 
and dated disclosure documents provided to 
purchasers. 

270 See 71 FR at 19067. When the Original 
Franchise Rule was amended, the time period was 
extended to 14 calendar days. The interim Business 
Opportunity Rule maintained the 10 business-day 
period. See 72 FR at 15468, 15570. 

271 See 71 FR at 19067. 
272 Id. 
273 See 73 FR at 16134. 
274 Planet Antares-RNPR at 13–14. 
275 See 16 CFR 436.2(a) (fourteen calendar days); 

§ 437.2(g) of the interim Business Opportunity Rule 
(ten business days). 

276 See, e.g., FTC v. Bus. Card Experts, Inc., No. 
06–CV–4671 (PJS/RLE) (D. Minn. 2006) 
(representatives told consumers they must invest 
within one or two weeks in order to take advantage 
of special ‘‘promotional’’ rate). 

277 71 FR at 19067. 
278 See id. 
279 See § 437.3(a). 

read them, share them with an advisor, 
and retain them for future use.266 

In response to the Staff Report, one 
commenter expressed concern that the 
Rule would be overly burdensome if 
electronic compliance were not 
permitted.267 Aso 

commeCterisso obadoptsiiscloefiRulo obasi*
((reprenter eo 14em forf Report, one
/T1_2 1 Tf
-0.001 TD
644and rB. Snico ob(g):interOtion to obTo0 -1.1 TD
(and rFurnish Wr.)Tjn Dnts proviT1_1 1 Tf
1.886  TD
(P(§)nternded)r clo obeciforfwoul, -163(43772(g),
-0.0041 Td
(commeimposasialiat )requirethroue )Tj
-0.00ule woulrat7Tj
-ation to obecia of tsne Sfurnish 0.00ule tioal methoasers. 
Rule It 13	aiisclat 1,
permimers they.-0.0045 Tw -14.2122 Td
(In renterosure documents provm	aat 141 -1.1 Td
(comm[(by -163(43772(g) inveserlfurnishnceat r aj
-0*
((tens reendar days); )verfat )r twofweeks*
(electrvprov: En a ta(1j
TTj
-executo obeciany)0.00ule iantractinliann clo oban adTj
Tbss )Tj
-0.00f speunity Rule sar ;	urr(2j
TTj
-pj
throue )0.00f spany)mersio t to obe Staffa of t0 Tw 7.002 0 0 5.85 170.7852.3288 32406 7 07)Tj
9 0 0 9 182.4656
(8 7922.2m
(See, Tji
-0.0045 Tw -14.2745.719 Td
(commetio, )o obisiim Beo 14e Se iocuma)0.00f sp Rufatmist	aaperuturdetted.n ng whjn *
(electa of tsninvesfurnish osure docus erfat )0.00ule tj
 nt221	sers. g) clarifiasi*
(� TD
(1(and rthe )221promotj
throue Staffa of t222 rate)ef tsne S0.00ule tTy provimad
-en a tadirectey e Staff*
(electa of t,	urindirectey etrougada)TjirdS0.00ule tTrty,)su byasialbrok t,lhem,gen t tTj
0 -1.f sper loc tTj.-0.00122 Td
(In renters reendar days-);  tteiod
Tj
-1 -1.1 Td
(1(commemodrond om forfnal )Tj
-hise Rule 0.00ule woulrat2s)requirethrouthe )r of tsnfurnish 0.00ule tioal methoasers. 267
permitsers. g) cle-m(csllatiwe-m
yen, c taknfurnishverfa(csllbrok t,lwai
(cslT*
(pesper loc 170.7852.3288 3ifugat 45 Tw 9 0 pj
siany)0.00ule fetob(g) clignt2s)rmodrcsll 1,)Tj
-C(1(g) secutesiany)hem,gen t ta1283.63.6255 T bs 0 shityen 0045 Tw 9 f002gi
(y)0279)Tj
10.0 0 0 9 102in ng Tj
-pteiod
e11.9473 562 ng 4493of tsne Soa1.9473 562     0sian84ser41f tfat )3.00ule tj3.299renaE(3c18. )3.re docum0melo > Td
(In renirxtre*
(psuaeat b2.3288 3ifrov:ta25 r00ul0.004bo shityet r aj
-T3288 3ifunity Rule transaclo oe intBj
10.0045 Tw 9 0 It 13	aiisclat hav00f (cslT*
(pesp045 Tw 9 0amlexc.0 0 f tio1.56.rg Tj
-pteiod
e11.9473 562 r89.837 4speun83a1.94735562     0sian33.9763 4sfat )4a1.94Furdays0*
(,e tj3.299renaE(3c12.442.re docum0mea0f (cslT*
(pespnirx0uleicurdSl2.3288 3ifadS.0 aryd ehe )rn 004 f Tj
10.0045 Tw 9 0 0 9 102.1 ng,221pre at )r tworgu045 Tw 9 f00.85 rupeunio og) islT*invest9.491(c65ays); )vdec)0..tenterosutrxtrof t222 r83.4883a3tsne Soa1.9473655 Tbl )T-pj an adve0.xe77.6736a3tfat )3.00ulNo Staff Re 9 1ternd  0snaE(3c1a18sure docum0medmeds25 c rov:tj
ir)0..t )rent5 Tw 9 f Td
(In renat )0.0etteake mdva)Tc
(Ru.f s
-0.00ule orov:t nt21Oi9 mdv00.0D
(1v0commentere0 0 5s.8f55pinvespt
sn clo oban adTj
Tsaiany)0.00ulesacl 0
(2V	ue
of
1adTj
Ts[(.886  Tre,esacladop0sno oban adTj
Tbss0045r ;	urrce
rnd  dted ehe )rStaff Re 9 1al me/T1_2 cumfTrty,)(267yasiCtey etrougada)3: D clo oban D1j
9.491(c65/T1_1 cumfTsure 556um0mey etrougada)3(a Td8c,8f5cfaj
-Tclat  )
-osure docum0meinTj
tuese-m
848ss 





76841 Federal Register / Vol. 76, No. 236 / Thursday, December 8, 2011 / Rules and Regulations 

296 Section 437.3(a)(2). 
297 Section 437.3(a)(3). Key personnel include any 

of the business opportunity seller’s principals, 
officers, directors, and sales managers, as well as 
any individual who occupies ‘‘a position or 
performs a function similar to an officer, director, 
or sales manager of the seller.’’ 

298 Section 437.3(a)(4). The IPBOR would have 
required disclosure of the business opportunity 
seller’s cancellation or refund request history. Some 
commenters argued that requiring disclosure of the 
seller’s refund history would have had the wayward 
effect of discouraging legitimate businesses from 
offering refunds. Because companies with liberal 
refund policies were more likely to have refund 
requests than those offering no refunds, disclosure 
of refund requests could mislead consumers into 
thinking that a company offering liberal refunds is 
less reputable than the company offering no 
refunds. The Commission was persuaded by these 
commenters and omitted this required disclosure 
from the RPBOR. See 73 FR at 16126. 

299 Section 437.3(a)(5). 
300 In response to the Staff Report, one commenter 

suggested a myriad of additional changes to the 
disclosure document such as fields for the buyer’s 
contact information and additional fields for 
information related to the salesperson. NG 
Franchise-Staff Report at 4–5. The Commission 
finds the suggested changes unnecessary. 

301 Other Commission trade regulation rules 
similarly require disclosure of identifying 
information. E.g., Wool Products Labeling Rule, 16 
CFR 300.14; Fur Products Labeling Rule, 16 CFR 
301.43. 

302 43 FR at 59642. 
303 The Workshop panelists did not discuss this 

required disclosure. 
304 This is consistent with analogous provisions 

in the Amended Franchise Rule, 16 CFR 436.9, and 
the interim Business Opportunity Rule, 437.1(c). 

305 One workshop panelist commented that an 
earnings claim is the most important selling feature 
of any business opportunity, and for that reason, 
sellers should not be permitted to state they make 
no earnings claim. Taylor, June 09 Tr at 68. The 
Commission agrees that the earnings claim is 
important to purchasers’ investment decisions, but 
recognizes that there is an important distinction 
between forcing sellers to make an earnings claims 
and requiring them to substantiate any claims they 
choose to make. 

306 Business opportunity sellers must also make 
the following prescribed cautionary statement in 
close proximity to the ‘‘yes’’ or ‘‘no’’ check boxes: 
‘‘Read this statement carefully. You may wish to 
show this information to an advisor or accountant.’’ 

307 Jost, June 09 Tr at 56. 
308 Cantone, June 09 Tr at 55; Taylor, June 09 Tr 

at 56. 
309 E.g., Taylor, June 09 Tr at 57; Cantone, June 

09 Tr at 57. 
310 Macro Report at 15. 
311 Id. 

document.296 Third, sellers must 
disclose prior civil or criminal litigation 
involving claims of misrepresentation, 
fraud, securities law violations, or 
unfair or deceptive business practices 
that involve the business opportunity or 
its key personnel.297 Fourth, sellers 
must disclose any cancellation or refund 
policy.298 Finally, sellers must provide 
contact information for at least 10 of 
their purchasers nearest to the 
prospective purchaser’s location.299 A 
discussion of the record pertaining to 
each of the required substantive 
disclosures follows, along with changes 
made in the final Rule and consistent 
amendments made to the disclosure 
document.300 The final disclosure 
document is Appendix A to this Notice. 
The Spanish translation of the 
disclosure document is Appendix B to 
this Notice. 

a. Section 437.3(a)(1): Identifying 
Information 

The first required disclosure under 
the final Rule is the seller’s identifying 
information. Specifically, § 437.3(a)(1) 
requires that the seller disclose the 
name, business address0 0 5..r 0 l
Ss>e under32 78.7 Tm(am7. )Tj
*
(di0rt alt )TjTnessj
T*
(disclosuresales)Tj
0 j
Tfeto substty, and for thd requiring sure aimswhenosure 
dnt.prospective purchaser’s loca7.002 0 0 5.85 181.4084 613.025ayl391.8at:29 Tw -2.4627 -18.5477885.32 02tone, JrequiailTw Theyhe 
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328 As the Commission previously noted in the 
RNPR, however, nothing in the Rule would prevent 
the seller from speaking with the consumer to 
explain the nature or outcome of any legal action 
disclosed on the form. 73 FR at 16125. 

329 Jost, June 09 Tr at 36. 
330 The DOJ, upon request of the FTC, has the 

authority to seek civil penalties for violations of 
trade regulation rules issued pursuant to the FTC 
Act, but to obtain such penalties, the government 
must prove ‘‘actual knowledge or knowledge fairly 
implied on the basis of objective circumstances that 
such act is unfair or deceptive and is prohibited by 
such rule.’’ See 15 U.S.C. 56(a)(1); 45(m)(1)(A). 

331 See, e.g., FTC v. AMP Publ’n., Inc., No. SACV– 
00–112–AHS–ANx (C.D. Cal. 2001); FTC v. Home 
Professions, Inc., No. SACV 00–111 AHS (Eex) (C.D. 
Cal. 2001); FTC v. Innovative Prods., No. 3:00–CV– 
0312–D (N.D. Tex. 2000); FTC v. Encore Networking 
Servs., No. 00–1083 WJR (AIJx) (C.D. Cal. 2000); 
FTC v. Mediworks, Inc., No. 00–01079 (C.D. Cal. 
2000). Indeed, allegations that business opportunity 
sellers misrepresented their refund policies rank 
among the top 10 complaint allegations in 
Commission business opportunity cases brought 
under Section 5. See 71 FR 19069. 

332 The Commission adopted a similar approach 
in the TSR. 16 CFR 310.3(a)(1)(iii) (if a seller makes 
a representation about a refund policy, it must 
disclose ‘‘a statement of all material terms and 
conditions of such policy’’). 

333 See § 437.6. 

334 Taylor, June 09 Tr at 48. One commenter 
agreed. Brooks-Workshop comment. 

335 MacLeod, June 09 Tr at 50. 
336 71 FR at 19088 (IPBOR § 437.3(a)(5)). 
337 Id. at 19070. 
338 73 FR at 16126. 
339 Id. at 16115. 
340 Id. at 16126. 

required to disclose.328 The staff 
recommended, therefore, that 
§ 437.3(a)(3)(ii) be revised to add the 
following sentence: ‘‘For each action, 
the seller may also provide a brief 
accurate statement not to exceed 100 
words that describes the action.’’ No 
comments to the Staff Report addressed 
this revision. 

Upon consideration of the record, the 
staff’s recommendation, and the 
rationale for that recommendation, the 
Commission adopts § 437.3(a)(3)(ii) as 
recommended in the Staff Report. Non- 
compd1usce: withthe recstricion of thei 
arovidion a(Tj
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341 See June 09 Tr at 39–53. 
342 Cantone, June 09 Tr at 47 (providing as an 

example a company offering a 100% buy-back for 
vending machines and noting the company’s failure 
to disclose that the cost of sending back the vending 
machine would be borne by the purchaser, and 
would often exceed any refund due, thereby 
rendering any potential refund worthless). 

343 Taylor, June 09 Tr at 43. 
344 Morrissey, June 09 Tr at 45. The Commission 

has reviewed applicable provisions of the DSA 
Code of Ethics, but does not find them applicable. 
DSA dictates the specific terms of its members’ 
refund policies. The RPBOR, by contrast, did not 
specify the requirements of a seller’s refund or 
cancellation policy, or even whether the seller must 
have such policies. Instead, it attempted to ensure 
that if such policies existed, potential purchasers 
were aware of how they can exercise their rights 
under those policies. 

345 Specifically, in describing its approach 
regarding refund and cancellation policy 
disclosures, the Commission noted that it ‘‘adopted 
the same approach in the TSR.’’ 71 FR at 19069 

n.166 (citing 16 CFR 310.3(a)(1)(iii) (if a seller 
makes a representation about a refund policy, it 
must disclose ‘‘a statement of all material terms and 
conditions of such policy’’)). 

346 16 CFR 310.3(a)(1)(iii). 
347 See 71 FR 19069–70. 
348 72 FR 15565. 

349 71 FR at 19071 n.180. 
350 71 FR at 19088; 73 FR at 16135. 
351 See § 437.3(5)(i). 
352 71 FR at 19071. In the RNPR, the Commission 

solicited comment on whether giving sellers the 
ability to provide prospective purchasers with a 
national list was a viable option. It received no 
comments responsive to that request. 

353 Sellers that provide the disclosure document 
electronically would be permitted to attach the 
national list of references in electronic form as well. 

354 71 FR at 19071. 

Panelists in favor of requiring the 
disclosure of seller’s refund histories 
presented no arguments other than 
those previously considered by the 
Commission. Accordingly, the final 
Rule does not require this disclosure. 

(2) Information To Be Disclosed About 
Refund and Cancellation Policies 

Although workshop participants 
agreed that information about a seller’s 
cancellation and refund policies is an 
important component of a potential 
purchaser’s evaluation of a business 
opportunity, they were universally 
concerned that § 437.3(a)(4) did not 
contain enough specificity about what 
information must be disclosed to 
potential purchasers and suggested that 
additional guidance from the 
Commission was necessary.341 The 
panelist from the Maryland Attorney 
General’s Office thought the Rule 
should specify that all material terms of 
a refund policy must be disclosed, 
because in the context of business 
opportunity sales, it has been his 
experience that the requirements to 
obtain a refund are often so onerous that 
as a practical matter, no one is ever 
eligible.342 Some panelists felt the Rule 
should identify specific information to 
be disclosed. For example, one 
commenter noted that the period of time 
a seller has to exercise a right to 
cancellation or refund, or any 
conditions on return of unsold goods are 
material and should be required to be 
disclosed to potential purchasers.343 
One panelist suggested that the DSA 
Code of Ethics’ refund requirements 
might serve as a model to identify types 
of information that should be disclosed 
to potential purchasers.344 

After considering these comments, the 
Staff Report recommended modifying 
§ 437.3(a)(4) to track closely a similar 
disclosure requirement in the TSR.345 

The TSR requires that if the seller or 
telemarketer makes a representation 
about a refund, cancellation, exchange, 
or repurchase policy, it must provide 
the purchaser with a statement of all 
material terms and conditions of its 
policy.346 Requiring the disclosure of all 
material terms of a refund or 
cancellation policy most effectively 
accomplishes the Commission’s stated 
purpose of ensuring that potential 
purchasers are provided with 
information that would assist them in 
assessing the financial risk associated 
with the offer. Indeed, the commentary 
to the IPBOR indicates that the 
Commission, in fact, intended to require 
sellers to disclose all material terms of 
refund and repayment policies to 
prospective purchasers.347 

Therefore, upon consideration of the 
record, the Commission adopts the 
staff’s recommendation. Accordingly, 
the penultimate sentence of § 437.3(a)(4) 
of the final Rule has been clarified to 
read: ‘‘If so, state all material terms and 
conditions of the refund or cancellation 
policy in an attachment to the 
disclosure document.’’ As discussed in 
Section III.A.9., the final Rule includes 
a definition of ‘‘material’’ similar to the 
definition used in the TSR. Specifically, 
§ 437.1(i) defines, in relevant part, 
‘‘material’’ to mean ‘‘likely to affect a 
person’s choice of, or conduct regarding, 
goods or services.’’ Examples of material 
terms and conditions may include, for 
example, the period of time the 
purchaser has to cancel a purchase or 
request a refund; the specific steps 
necessary to cancel a purchase or 
request a refund; any fees or penalties 



http://www.ftc.gov/privacy/glbact/glb-faq.htm
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expectation that the information would be kept 
private, and (2) disclosure of the information is 
serious in nature, scope, and or potential impact to 
cause an ‘‘egregious breach of social norms.’’ See 
Pioneer Elecs., Inc. v. Olmstead, 40 Cal. 4th 360, 
370–71 (2007). Even when these criteria are met, 
the individual’s privacy interest must be weighed 
against legitimate and important competing 
interests. Id. When measured against this standard, 
disclosure of purchaser information pursuant to 
proposed § 437.3(a)(5) would not give rise to a 
privacy action. First, the disclosure document 
plainly notifies potential purchasers that their 
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382 16 CFR 436.7(b) and interim Business 
Opportunity Rule § 437.1(a)(22). 

383 71 FR at 19072. 
384 Id. 
385 See 16 CFR 436.9 and interim Business 

Opportunity Rule §§ 437.1(b), (c) and (e). 

386 The Amended Franchise Rule contains similar 
requirements. See 16 CFR 436.1(d)(2) and 
436.1(e)(6) (each prospective franchisee to whom 
the representation is made shall be notified of any 
material change in the information contained in the 
earnings claims document). 

387 As discussed in the INPR, the Commission did 
not propose a ‘‘geographic relevance’’ requirement 
because that prerequisite is subsumed in the 
‘‘reasonable basis’’ requirement. See 71 FR at 19072 
n.185. 

388 71 FR at 19072. 
389 Section 437.4(a)(4)(iv). 
390 71 FR at 19072. 
391 Id. 

been changed to ‘‘disclosure document’’ 
to conform it to the title of § 437.3. 

3. Section 437.3(b): Updating the 
Disclosure Document 

To ensure that a seller’s disclosures 
are current, § 437.3(b) requires sellers to 
update their disclosures at least 
quarterly. Modeled on the Original 
Franchise Rule and interim Business 
Opportunity Rule,382 the provision 
states that it would be a violation of the 
Rule and Section 5 of the FTC Act for 
a seller to fail to update the disclosures 
to reflect any material changes in the 
information presented in the basic 
disclosure document on at least a 
quarterly basis. The Commission has 
concluded that quarterly updating 
strikes the right balance between the 
need for accurate disclosure and the 
costs and burdens more frequent 
updating would entail.383 

Section 437.3(b) includes a proviso 
that would require more frequent 
updating in one respect: the list of 
references. Specifically, a seller is 
required to update the list of references 
monthly until such time that it is able 
to include the full list of 10 references. 
This is particularly necessary for start- 
up opportunities that may have few or 
no prior references when they 
commence business opportunity sales. 
The Commission has concluded that 
prospective purchasers’ ability to 
contact at least 10 references in their 
due diligence investigations of business 
opportunity offers outweighs any costs 
of more frequent updating until the list 
of 10 is compiled.384 

No comments were directed to the 
requirement of updating the disclosures, 
and the final Rule contains § 437.3(b) as 
recommended in the Staff Report. 

D. Section 437.4: Earnings C28 Tw m‘�()(nT wp34.59iorr(seres 416.0et. C28ent updatin.1Ceng would entam69nmiful0045 Tw de e re up37.4: s-9.955 -1.1 ould e1entam6Aule con)Tj
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905 SS (W.D. Tex. 2003); FTC v. Trek Alliance, Inc., 
No. 02–9270 SJL (AJWx) (C.D. Cal. 2002); FTC v. 
Terrance Maurice Howard, No. SA02CA0344 (W.D. 
Tex. 2002); FTC v. 
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442 This is consistent with the interim Business 
Opportunity Rule approach. See 16 CFR 437.1(h). 

443 E.g., FTC v. AMP Publ’ns, Inc., No. SACV–00– 
112–AHS–ANx (C.D. Cal. 2001) (failure to honor 90- 
day money back guarantee); FTC v. Star Publ’g 
Group, Inc., No. 00–023 (D. Wyo. 2000) (failure to 
honor 90-day refund policy). 

444 73 FR at 19076. 
445 See, e.g., FTC v. Trek Alliance, Inc., No. 02– 

9270 SJL (AJWx) (C.D. Cal. 2002) (defendants 
placed ads in ‘‘Help Wanted’’ sections of newspaper 
offering salaried position); FTC v. Leading Edge 
Processing, Inc., No. 6:02–CV–681–ORL–19 DAB 
(M.D. Fla. 2003) (defendants sent emails to job 
seekers who posted their resumes on job Web sites, 
falsely representing the availability of jobs and 
guaranteeing a steady stream of work); FTC v. David 
Martinelli, Jr., No. 3:99 CV 1272 (D. Conn. 2000) 
(defendants sent unsolicited emails falsely offering 
a $13.50 per hour position processing applications 
for credit, loans, or employment). 

446 71 FR at 19076. In some instances, a business 
opportunity seller may offer a prospect an exclusive 
territory, in which no other person has the right to 
compete within the territory. In other instances, a 
seller may offer a more limited protection. For 
example, the seller may prohibit other purchasers 
from operating in the territory, but reserve to itself 
the ability to conduct telemarking or Internet sales 
in the territory. Regardless of the scope of the 
territorial protection, § 437.6(n) prohibits business 
opportunity sellers from misrepresenting the nature 
of the territory. 

447 Id. at 19065. 
448 Id. at 19075. 
449 E.g., FTC v. Am. Safe Mktg., No. 1:89–CV– 

462–RLV (N.D. Ga. 1989). 

450 Cf. TSR, 16 CFR 310.3(a)(vii) (prohibiting 
misrepresentations concerning ‘‘affiliation with, or 
endorsement or sponsorship by, any person or 
government entity’’). 

451 E.g., FTC v. Streamline Int’l, No. 01–6885– 
CIV–Ferguson (S.D. Fla. 2001) (misrepresented FDA 
approval); FTC v. Star Publ’g Group, Inc., No. 00– 
023 (D. Wyo. 2000) (misrepresented HUD approval); 
FTC v. Bus. Opportunity Ctr., Inc., No. 95 8429– 
CIV–Zloch (S.D. Fla. 1995) (misrepresented FDA 
approval); see also FTC v. Hawthorne Commc’ns, 
No. 93–7002 AAH (JGX) (C.D. Cal. 1993) (order 
restricting use of testimonials and endorsements in 
the sale of business opportunities). 

452 E.g., FTC v. Global Assistance Network for 
Charities, No. 96–2494 PHX RCB (D. Ariz. 1996). 

453 71 FR at 19077. 

cancellation or refund policy.442 As 
noted above, § 437.6(k) prohibits a seller 
from misrepresenting, pre-sale, the 
seller’s cancellation or refund policy. 
Section 437.6(l) complements that 
section and is intended to address 
sellers’ post-sale conduct, prohibiting 
the seller from failing to honor 
cancellation or refund requests when 
purchasers have satisfied all the terms 
and conditions disclosed in the seller’s 
disclosure document for obtaining such 
relief.443 In the Commission’s 
experience, the failure of business 
opportunity sellers to make promised 
refunds or to honor cancellation policies 
ranks high among issues raised by 
business opportunity purchasers.444 

No comments received in response to 
the RNPR or the Staff Report were 
directed to this provision, and the final 
Rule contains § 437.6(l) as 
recommended in the Staff Report. 

13. Section 437.6(m): Misrepresenting 
Business Opportunity as an 
Employment Opportunity 

Section 437.6(m) prohibits business 
opportunity sellers from 
misrepresenting a business opportunity 
as an employment opportunity. The 
Commission’s law enforcement 
experience demonstrates that some 
business opportunity sellers lure 
unsuspecting consumers by falsely 
representing that they are offering 
employment when, in fact, they are 
offering vending, work-at-home, or other 
business opportunities. For example, in 
some instances consumers have 
responded to advertisements seeking 
sales executives, only to discover that 
the ‘‘position’’ requires them to 
purchase equipment or products from 
the seller and, in turn, to sell those 
products.445 The Commission concludes 
that this prohibition is necessary to 
protect consumers against false 
representations of employment 
opportunities. 

No comments received in response to 
the RNPR or the Staff Report were 
directed to this provision, and the final 
Rule contains § 437.6(m) as 
recommended in the Staff Report. 

14. Section 437.6(n): Misrepresenting 
the Exclusivity of Territories 

Section 437.6(n) prohibits 
misrepresentations about the terms of 
any territorial exclusivity or limited 
territorial protection offered to a 
prospective purchaser.446 In the 
Commission’s experience, false or 
misleading promises about territories 
are a common deceptive practice 
reported by business opportunity 
purchasers.447 The Commission has 
stated that representations about 
territorial exclusivity or more limited 
territorial protections are material 
because they often induce a prospective 
purchaser into believing that he or she 
will not be competing for customers 
with the seller or other purchasers, 
thereby increasing the purchaser’s 
likelihood of success.448 

No comments received in response to 
the RNPR or the Staff Report were 
directed to this provision, and the final 
Rule contains § 437.6(n) as 
recommended in the Staff Report. 

15. Section 437.6(o): Assigning a 
Purported Exclusive Territory to 
Another Purchaser 

Section 437.6(o) prohibits a seller 
from assigning a single ‘‘exclusive’’ 
territory to more than one purchaser. 
This prohibition complements 
§ 437.6(n), which prohibit sellers from 
misrepresenting territories. It is 
intended to address sellers’ post-sale 
conduct, and prohibits the seller from 
failing to honor its promises regarding 
exclusive or protected territories. 
Consumer complaints indicate, and the 
Commission’s law enforcement 
experience confirms, that fraudulent 
business opportunity sellers often sell 
the same purportedly exclusive territory 
to several unsuspecting purchasers.449 
In these circumstances, purchasers who 
have been lured to invest in an 
opportunity on the basis of promises of 

an exclusive territorial lock on their 
market find that their chances of success 
are materially reduced by competition 
from the other purchasers. 

No comments received in response to 
the RNPR or the Staff Report were 
directed to this provision, and the final 
Rule contains § 437.6(o) as 
recommended in the Staff Report. 

16. Section 437.6(p): Misrepresenting 
Third Party Endorsements or Other 
Affiliation 

Section 437.6(p) prohibits business 
opportunity sellers from 
misrepresenting that ‘‘any person, 
trademark or service mark holder, or 
governmental entity, directly or 
indirectly benefits from, sponsors, 
participates in, endorses, approves, 
authorizes, or is otherwise associated 
with the sale of the business 
opportunity or the goods or services 
sold through the business 
opportunity.’’ 450 The Commission’s 
enforcement experience indicates that 
business opportunity frauds often lure 
consumers by misrepresenting that their 
opportunities have been approved or 
endorsed by a government agency or 
well-known third party.451
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454 See id. at n.236 (‘‘After earnings claims, false 
testimonials and shill references are the most 
common Section 5 allegations in Commission 
business opportunities cases.’’) 

455 E.g., FTC v. Am. Entm’t Distribs., Inc., No. 04– 
22431–CIV–Martinez (S.D. Fla. 2004); United States 
v. Vaughn, No. 01–20077–01–KHV (D. Kan. 2001); 
FTC v. Hart Mktg. Enters. Ltd., No. 98–222–CIV–T– 
23 E (M.D. Fla. 1998); FTC v. Inetintl.com, No. 98– 
2140 (C.D. Cal. 1998); FTC v. Infinity Multimedia, 
Inc., No. 96–6671–CIV–Gonzalez (S.D. Fla. 1996); 
FTC v. Allstate Bus. Consultants Group, Inc., No. 
95–6634–CIV–Ryskamp (S.D. Fla. 1995). 

456 E.g., FTC v. Affiliated Vendors Ass’n, Inc., No. 
02–CV–0679–D (N.D. Tex. 2002); FTC v. Raymond 
Urso, No. 97–2680–CIV–Ungaro-Benages (S.D. Fla. 
1997); see also 71 FR at 19077 n. 238. 

457 Indeed, the Commission has long held that the 
failure to disclose compensation paid to an 
endorser is a deceptive practice in violation of 
Section 5. 
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Rule or the Business Opportunity Rule would not 
be justified. 
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481 This provision is comparable to the 
severability provision in the Amended Franchise 
Rule, 16 CFR 436.11, as well as the severability 
provisions in other Commission rules. See, e.g., 
TSR, 16 CFR 310.9. 

482 To estimate how many of the 3,050 sellers 
market business opportunities in languages other 
than English, staff relied upon 2009 United States 
Census Bureau (‘‘Census’’) data. Calculations based 
upon a recent Census survey reveal that 
approximately 5.7% of the U.S. population speaks 
Spanish or Spanish Creole at home and speak 
English less than ‘‘very well.’’ Calculations based 
upon that same survey reveal that approximately 
2.6% of the U.S. population speaks a language other 
than Spanish, Spanish Creole, or English at home 
and speak English less than ‘‘very well.’’ Staff 
therefore projected that 5.7% of all entities selling 
business opportunities market in Spanish or 
Spanish Creole and 2.6% of all entities selling 
business opportunities market in languages other 
than English, Spanish and Spanish Creole. http:// 
factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&- 
geo_id=01000US&- 
qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&- 
ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&- 
redoLog=false. 

483 See supra Section III.C.2. 

invalid by a court, the remainder will 
still be in effect.481 No comments 
received in response to the RNPR or the 
Staff Report were directed to this 
provision. 

IV. Paperwork Reduction Act 

The Commission is submitting the 
final Rule and a Supplemental 
Supporting Statement to the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) for 
review under the Paperwork Reduction 
Act (PRA), 44 U.S.C. 3501–21. The final 
Rule amends a trade regulation rule 
governing business opportunity sales. 
The final Rule covers those business 
opportunities currently covered by the 
interim Business Opportunity Rule (and 
formerly covered by the Original 
Franchise Rule, as explained above), as 
well as certain others not covered by the 
interim Business Opportunity Rule, 
such as sellers of work-at-home 
programs. The final Rule requires 
business opportunity sellers to disclose 
specified information and to maintain 
certain records relating to business 
opportunity sales transactions. The 
currently approved estimate for the 
disclosure and recordkeeping burden 
under the interim Business Opportunity 
Rule is 16,750 hours for business 
opportunity sellers. That estimate was 
based on an estimated 2,500 business 
opportunity sellers. As discussed below, 
the final Rule reduces the existing 
burden on business opportunity sellers 
by streamlining disclosure requirements 
to minimize compliance costs. 

In the RNPR, Commission staff 
estimated there were approximately 
3,050 business opportunity sellers 
covered by the RPBOR. This figure 
consisted of an estimated 2,500 vending 
machine, rack display, and other 
opportunity sellers currently covered by 
the interim Business Opportunity Rule, 
and an estimated 550 work-at-home 
opportunity sellers, which would be 
newly covered entities under the final 
Rule. Because the final Rule is no 
different than the RPBOR regarding the 
types of entities to which it applies, and 
the Commission received no 
information suggesting the need to 
update these prior estimates, the 
Commission retains them for the final 
Rule. Additionally, Commission staff 
estimates that approximately 174 of 
those sellers market business 
opportunities in Spanish and that 
approximately 79 of the 3,050 business 

opportunity sellers market in languages 
other than English or Spanish.482 

A. Disclosure Requirements 
As discussed below, the final Rule is 

designed to streamline and substantially 
reduce the quantity of information 
business opportunity sellers are 
required to disclose under the interim 
Business Opportunity Rule. The final 
Rule impacts sellers differently, 
depending upon whether they are 
currently covered by the interim 
Business Opportunity Rule and what 
language they use to market the 
business opportunities. 

1. Mandatory Disclosures 
For the 2,500 vending machine, rack 

display, and other business opportunity 
sellers currently covered by the interim 
Business Opportunity Rule, the final 
Rule substantially reduces the 
disclosures from more than 20 
categories of information to five—the 
seller’s identifying information, 
earnings claims, lawsuits, refund and 
cancellation policies, and prior 
purchasers. This streamlining also will 
minimize compliance costs for the 550 
business opportunity sellers that will be 
newly subject to the Rule. Business 
opportunity sellers must disclose 
whether or not they make earnings 
claims. The decision to make an 
earnings claim, however, is optional. 
While the disclosures of references and 
earnings claims retain, for the most part, 
the interim Business Opportunity Rule 
requirements, the required disclosure of 
lawsuits is reduced from the interim 
Business Opportunity Rule.483 

The final Rule imposes one additional 
requirement that was not present in 
either the interim Business Opportunity 
Rule or the RPBOR, which was 
introduced in the Staff Report. For 
business opportunities marketed in 
Spanish, § 437.5 of the final Rule 

requires that sellers provide potential 
purchasers with the Spanish version of 
the disclosure document (Appendix B to 
the Rule) and provide all other required 
disclosures in Spanish. For sales 
conducted in a language other than 
English or Spanish, the final Rule 
requires that sellers make the required 
disclosures in the same language as the 
sale, using the form and an accurate 
translation of the language set forth in 
Appendix A, as well as any additional 
required disclosures. As discussed in 
the Statement of Basis and Purpose, this 
translation requirement is supported by 
long-standing Commission policy, the 
Commission’s law enforcement 
experience, the rulemaking record, and 
the rationale supporting staff’s 
recommendation. 

2. Incorporation of Existing Materials 
The final Rule reduces collection and 

dissemination costs from those imposed 
by the interim Business Opportunity 
Rule, by permitting sellers to reference 
in their disclosure documents materials 
already in their possession. For 
example, a seller need not repeat its 
refund policy in the text of the 
disclosure document, but may 
incorporate its contract or brochures, or 
other materials that already provide the 
necessary details. 

3. Use of Electronic Dissemination of 
Information 

The final Rule defines the term 
‘‘written’’ to include electronic media. 
Accordingly, all business opportunities 
covered by the final Rule are permitted 
to use the Internet and other electronic 
media to furnish disclosure documents. 
Allowing this distribution method 
should greatly reduce sellers’ 
compliance costs over the long run, 
especially costs associated with printing 
and distributing disclosure documents. 
As a result of this proposal, the 
Commission expects sellers’ compliance 
costs will decrease substantially over 
time. 

4. Use of Computerized Data Collection 
Technology 

Finally, because of advances in 
computerized data collection 
technology, the Commission anticipates 
that the costs of collecting information 
and recordkeeping requirements 
imposed by the final Rule will be 
minimal. For example, a seller can 
easily maintain a spreadsheet of its 
purchasers, which can be sorted by 
location. This would enable a seller to 
easily comply with the reference 
disclosure requirement (at least 10 prior 
purchasers in the last three years who 
are located nearest to the prospective 

http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&-geo_id=01000US&-qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&-ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&-redoLog=false
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&-geo_id=01000US&-qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&-ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&-redoLog=false
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&-geo_id=01000US&-qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&-ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&-redoLog=false
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&-geo_id=01000US&-qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&-ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&-redoLog=false
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&-geo_id=01000US&-qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&-ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&-redoLog=false
http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/STTable?_bm=y&-geo_id=01000US&-qr_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_S1601&-ds_name=ACS_2009_1YR_G00_&-_lang=en&-redoLog=false
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484 73 FR at 16129. 
485 As discussed within the Statement of Basis 

and Purpose, this requirement was not present in 
the RNPR. Rather, it was recommended in the Staff 
Report, and ultimately adopted in the final Rule. 

486 See Bureau of Consumer Protection, Staff 
Report to the Federal Trade Commission and 
Proposed Revised Trade Regulation Rule (16 CFR 
Part 437) (Nov. 2010) (‘‘Staff Report’’), available at 
http://www.ftc.gov/os/fedreg/2010/october/ 
101028businessopportunitiesstaffreport.pdf. In 
November, the Commission published a notice in 
the Federal Register announcing the availability of, 
and seeking comment on, the Staff Report. See 75 
FR 68559 (Nov. 8, 2010). 

487 DOJ Staff Report at 2. The comment, from the 
Office of Consumer Litigation, U.S. Department of 
Justice, registered strong support for the 
requirement. 

purchaser, or, if there are not 10 prior 
purchasers, then all prior purchasers). 
In the alternative, the final Rule permits 
a seller to maintain a national list of 
purchasers. 

B. Recordkeeping Requirements 

Section 437.7 of the final Rule 
prescribes recordkeeping requirements 
necessary for effective enforcement of 
the Rule. Specifically, sellers of a 
covered business opportunity, and their 
principals, must retain for at least three 
years the following types of documents: 
(1) Each materially different version of 
all documents required by the Rule; (2) 
each purchaser’s disclosure receipt; (3) 
each executed written contract with a 
purchaser; and (4) all substantiation 
upon which the seller relies for each 
earnings claim made. The final Rule 
requires that these records be made 
available for the Commission’s 
inspection, but does not otherwise 
require their production. As previously 
noted, because of advances in 
computerized data collection 
technology, the Commission anticipates 
that the costs of collecting information 
and recordkeeping requirements 
imposed by the final Rule will be 
minimal. 

C. Estimated Hours Burden and Labor 
Cost 

For the RNPR, the Commission 
submitted the RPBOR and associated 
documentation under the PRAsclJs foriation 
upon whhfvievaJeq7r tht5.4465.8(Fed.4998 342.5282Tj
-0.0029 Tw 7 0 0 9 45 725 Tm89.639 34 9..5 Tj
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488 17.5 cents is staff’s estimate of the current 
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490 Since October 2000, SBA size standards have 
been based on the North American Industry 
Classification System (‘‘NAICS’’), in place of the 
Standard Industrial Classification (‘‘SIC’’) system. 
In general, a company in a non-manufacturing 
industry is a small business if its average annual 
receipts are $7 million or less. See http:// 
www.sba.gov/content/summary-size-standards- 
industry. 

of which came from the MLM industry. 
The MLM industry urged the 
Commission to exclude MLM plans 
from the scope of IPBOR due to the 
burdens imposed on them through the 
IPBOR and the IPBOR’s failure to 
differentiate between unlawful pyramid 
schemes and legitimate companies 
using an MLM model. In consideration 
of the comments received in response to 
the INPR, and a reassessment of the 
Commission’s law enforcement history, 
the Commission subsequently issued a 
RNPR, in which the Commission 
decided to narrow the scope of the 
IPBOR to avoid broadly sweeping in all 
sellers of MLM plans. In addition, the 
Commission proposed a more narrowed 
definition of ‘‘business opportunity’’ 
and also eliminated two required 
disclosures—information about legal 
actions pertaining to a business 
opportunity seller’s sales personnel, and 
the number of cancellation or refund 
requests the seller received. The 
Commission received fewer than 125 
comments and rebuttal comments in 
response to RNPR addressing these 
changes. The Commission received 
written comment from six individuals 
and entities following the public 
workshop held by the Commission. 
Finally, the Commission received 27 
comments in response to the Staff 
Report. Many of those comments 
opposed the Commission’s decision to 
narrow the scope of the Rule to avoid 
broadly sweeping in the MLMs. 

C. Description and an Estimate of the 
Number of Small Entities to Which the 
Final Rule Will Apply, or Explanation 
Why No Estimate Is Available 

The final Rule primarily applies to 
‘‘sellers’’ of business opportunities, 
including vending, rack display, 
medical billing, and work-at-home (e.g., 
craft assembly, envelope stuffing) 
opportunities. The Commission believes 
that many of these sellers fall into the 
category of small entities. Determining 
the precise number of small entities 
affected by the final Rule, however, is 
difficult due to the wide range of 
businesses engaged in business 
opportunity sales. The staff estimates 
that there are approximately 3,050 
business opportunity sellers, including 
some 2,500 vending machine, rack 
display, and related opportunity sellers 
and 550 work-at-home opportunity 
sellers. Most established and some start- 
up business opportunities would likely 
be considered small businesses 
according to the applicable Small 
Business Ad.3
pule primaril2 to the wrMee





76861 Federal Register / Vol. 76, No. 236 / Thursday, December 8, 2011 / Rules and Regulations 

preserved in tangible form and read. It 
includes: type-set, word processed, or 
handwritten documents; information on 
computer disk or CD–ROM; information 
sent via email; or information posted on 
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(i) The beginning and ending dates 
when the represented earnings were 
achieved; and 

(ii) The number and percentage of all 
persons who purchased the business 
opportunity prior to the ending date in 
paragraph (b)(3)(i) of this section who 
achieved at least the stated level of 
earnings. 

(c) Disseminate industry financial, 
earnings, or performance information 
unless the seller has written 
substantiation demonstrating that the 
information reflects, or does not exceed, 
the typical or ordinary financial, 
earnings, or performance experience of 
purchasers of the business opportunity 
being offered for sale. 

(d) Fail to notify any prospective 
purchaser in writing of any material 
changes affecting the relevance or 
reliability of the information contained 
in an earnings claim statement before 
the prospective purchaser signs any 
contract or makes a payment or provides 
other consideration to the seller, 
directly or indirectly, through a third 
party. 

§ 437.5 Sales conducted in Spanish or 
other languages besides English. 

(a) If the seller conducts the offer for 
sale, sale, or promotion of a business 
opportunity in Spanish, the seller must 
provide the disclosure document 
required by § 437.3(a) in the form and 
language set forth in appendix B to this 
part, and the disclosures required by 
§§ 437.3(a) and 437.4 must be made in 
Spanish. 

(b) If the seller conducts the offer for 
sale, sale, or promotion of a business 
opportunity in a language other than 
English or Spanish, the seller must 
provide the disclosure document 
required by § 437.3(a) using the form 
and an accurate translation of the 
language set forth in appendix A to this 
part, and the disclosures required by 
§§ 437.3(a) and 437.4 must be made in 
that language. 

§ 437.6 Other prohibited practices. 
In connection with the offer for sale, 

sale, or promotion of a business 
opportunity, it is a violation of this part 
and an unfair or deceptive act or 
practice in violation of Section 5 of the 
FTC Act for any seller, directly or 
indirectly through a third party, to: 

(a) Disclaim, or require a prospective 
purchaser to waive reliance on, any 
statement made in o2qglish or eed by 
§§ 437.3(a) and 437.4 must be made in 
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any time from before to within six 
months after commencing operation of 
the franchisee’s business is less than 
$500, or 

(b) Under § 436.8(a)(7), there is no 
written document describing any 
material term or aspect of the 
relationship or arrangement. 

§ 437.9 Outstanding orders; preemption. 

(a) A business opportunity required 
by prior FTC or court order to follow the 
Franchise Rule, 16 CFR part 436, may 

petition the Commission to amend the 
order or to stipulate to an amendment 
of the court order so that the business 
opportunity may follow the provisions 
of this part. 

(b) The FTC does not intend to 
preempt the business opportunity sales 
practices laws of any state or local 
government, except to the extent of any 
conflict with this part. A law is not in 
conflict with this Rule if it affords 
prospective purchasers equal or greater 
protection, such as registration of 

disclosure documents or more extensive 
disclosures. All such disclosures, 
however, must be made in a separate 
state disclosure document. 

§ 437.10 Severability. 

The provisions of this part are 
separate and severable from one 
another. If any provision is stayed or 
determined to be invalid, the remaining 
provisions shall continue in effect. 
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